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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

FUND INFORMATION

Fund name Opus Income Plus Fund

Type (Category) Income (Bond)

Fund's Launch Date 28 September 2018

Financial Year End 30 June

Investment Objective The Fund seeks to achieve higher returns than Maybank 12-month fixed

deposit rate over the medium to long term, while preserving capital*
and providing an opportunity for income.

* Opus Income Plus Fund is neither a capital guaranteed fund nor a
capital protected fund.

Benchmark Maybank 12-month fixed deposit rate.

Distribution Policy The Fund intends to distribute income, if any, at least once a year.



OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND
FUND PERFORMANCE DATA

Fund Performance Data

Portfolio Composition:
Unquoted fixed income securities
Cash and cash equivalents

Total

Total Net Asset Value (NAV) (RM)
Units in circulation (million)
NAYV per unit (RM)

Highest NAV per unit*
Lowest NAV per unit*

Return of the Fund (%)

- Capital growth (%)

- Income return (%)

Gross distribution per Unit (sen)
Net distribution per Unit (sen)
Total Expense Ratio (%)
Portfolio Turnover Ratio (times)

*ex-distribution

As at As at As at
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23 30-Jun-22
% of NAV % of NAV % of NAV
96.38 91.98 94.80
3.62 8.02 5.20
100.00 100.00 100.00
23,080,665 14,403,459 18,513,045
20,934,496 13,292,717 18,184,392
1.1025 1.0836 1.0181
01.07.2023 01.07.2022 01.07.2021
to 30.06.2024 to 30.06.2023 to 30.06.2022
1.1052 1.0837 1.0588
1.0825 1.0181 1.0136
450 6.43 (2.12)
1.73 6.43 (2.87)
2.77 - 0.77
3.00 - 0.80
3.00 - 0.80
0.88 0.88 0.88
0.37 0.87 0.62

Basis of calculation and assumption made in calculating the returns:

Capital return = (End NAV per Unit / Beginning NAV per unit) - 1

Income return = Income distribution per Unit / NAV per Unit ex-date
Total return = (1 + Capital return) x (1 + Income return) - 1



OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

FUND PERFORMANCE DATA (CONTINUED)

Performance of the Fund

1 Year 3 Years 5 Years
01.07.2023 01.07.2021 01.07.2019
to 30.06.2024 10 30.06.2024 to0 30.06.2024
Opus Income Plus Fund 4.54% 8.93% 15.95%
Benchmark # 2.73% 7.54% 12.67%
Outperformance 1.81% 1.39% 3.28%
4 ™\
Cumulative Return
OPUS IPF vs Benchmark
20,0%
15.95%
Het TWRR
9 15.0% 1567%
‘:‘ Benchmark
K 10.0%
£
-
: A /“/*V\ -
g 5.0% v o/
0.0% . — . —
A ] [ = A n o = ] W (] = A W o z =] W o = al
* Inception Date Month
\ OPUSIPF = Benchmark Maybank 12-Month Fixed Deposit Rate )




OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

FUND PERFORMANCE DATA (CONTINUED)

Annual Total Return of the Fund

Financial Year

Financial Year

Financial Year

2024 2023 2022

01.07.2023 01.07.2022 01.07.2021

t0 30.06.2024 to 30.06.2023 to 30.06.2022

Opus Income Plus Fund 4.54% 6.43% -2.10%

Benchmark # 2.73% 2.74% 1.88%

Underperformance/Outperformance 1.81% 3.69% -3.98%

Financial Year Financial Year

2021 2020

01.07.2020 01.07.2019

to 30.06.2021 to 30.06.2020

Opus Income Plus Fund 0.19% 6.24%

Benchmark # 1.86% 2.86%

Underperformance/Outperformance -1.67% 3.38%

Average Total Return of the Fund

1 Year 3 Years 5 Years

01.07.2023 01.07.2021 01.07.2019

to 30.06.2024 to 30.06.2024 to 30.06.2024

Opus Income Plus Fund 4.54% 2.89% 3.00%

Benchmark # 2.73% 2.45% 2.41%

Outperformance 1.81% 0.44% 0.59%
Note: * Source: Bloomberg, Opus Asset Management Sdn Bhd

Source: Malayan Banking Berhad
@ The Fund's inception date was 18 October 2018 (i.e. after the end of Fund's

initial offer period).

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and that unit prices and investment

returns may go down, as well as up.
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MANAGER'S REPORT

As at 30 June 2024 the Fund was 96.38% invested while 3.62% was held in cash. For the period
01.07.2023 to 30.06.2024, the Fund had registered a return of 4.54% as compared to the benchmark
return of 2.73% which was the accreted value of the Maybank 12-Months Fixed Deposit Rate. Hence,
the Fund outperformed the benchmark by 1.81%. Since its inception, the Fund has outperformed the
benchmark by 3.28% with returns of 15.95% compared to the benchmark of 12.67%. The Fund had a
duration of 4.01 years. The average rating of the portfolio was AA2.
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Market Review

In Q2°24, we saw G10 central banks—specifically the Bank of Canada, Riksbank (Sweden), and the
European Central Bank (ECB)—transition into the rate easing cycle with their first policy rate cuts,

while the Swiss National Bank (SNB) surprised with a second cut. Central banks now appear more
tolerant of stickier inflation as a trade-off to avoid the risk of an economic downturn.

The US continues to show a picture of resilient labour market with hotter job numbers and wage
growth. However, upon closer examination, most job gains were part-time and driven by sectors such as
healthcare and government, while the number of full-time jobs notably declined, hinting at a possible
slowdown ahead. In terms of leading indicators, there continues to be a divergence between goods and
services, with disappointing manufacturing Purchasing Managers' Index (PMI) as of Jun’24, which
remained contractionary at 48.7 while the services PMI exceeded expectations at 53.8.

The Federal Reserve kept the Fed fund Rate (FFR) unchanged at 5.25% - 5.50% in the June 24 Federal
Reserve Open Market Committee (FOMC) meeting, in line with market expectation. The Fed now
projects only one rate cut which had already been priced in by the markets. Some dovish undertones
were noted in the Fed statement, acknowledging "modest further progress” in light of recent softer
inflation data. Key data points influencing yield movements included: 1) a slower May’24 core inflation
rate at 0.2% MoM (Apr ’24: 0.3%; Exp: 0.3%), 2) a surprising contraction in the Producer Price Index
(PPI) at -0.2% (Apr ’24: 0.5%; Exp: 0.2%), and 3) weaker retail sales at 0.1% MoM (Exp: 0.2%)).
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MANAGER'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Market Review (Continued)

Meanwhile, in China, the property sector slump shows no signs of recovery despite the recent
announcement of policy support (RMB300 billion housing relending scheme), which has only just
begun implementation. However, targeted consumption stimulus began to yield results in recent retail
sales data (12.9% YoY), amid ongoing efforts by the Chinese government to restore consumer
confidence. Fixed asset investments in both manufacturing and infrastructure continue to grow
consecutively at 9.4% and 7.7%, respectively, in line with broader initiatives toward higher-quality
growth. Further issuance of special government bonds will provide additional tailwinds in the second
half of ’24 towards the Chinese government’s 5% growth target.

Back home in Malaysia, our fundamentals remain intact, evident in strong employment and trade
recovery. The labor market remained resilient, with the April *24 unemployment rate stable at 3.3%,
supported by a high participation rate of 70.3%. Exports in May 24 showed a strong recovery with a
7.3% YoY growth, driven mainly by increased sales of electrical & electronics and palm oil/related
agricultural products. Meanwhile, increased imports of intermediate and capital goods suggest a
promising outlook for economic activity expansion ahead. Furthermore, inflation has remained subdued
so far (May "24: 2% YY), even with the recent diesel subsidy cut due to its small contribution to the
consumer price index. However, a larger impact is expected from the rationalization of RON95 fuel
subsidies, with headline forecasts ranging between 2.5% and 3.3%. While rising costs may moderate
discretionary spending, the withdrawal of RM7 billion from EPF Account 3 as of June 10, *24, and the
13% salary hike for civil servants could mitigate some effects. We expect domestic consumption and
recovery in external trades and tourism to support growth with 2024 GDP growth expected at 4.5% -
5.0%.

Market Outlook

Following the adjustment seen in Q1°24, yields have been inching lower as the markets react to the
recent softer data prints throughout Q2°24. Overall, UST yields declined 23-33 bps across the curve,
with the UST10Y now at 4.40%, down from April's high of 4.71%.

Notwithstanding fewer and delayed rate cuts, interest rate outlook is bias towards more rate cuts as
central banks shift focus on growth slowdown. We expect Fed to cut between 0 — 50bps by end-2024.
Nevertheless, volatility in rates will continue persist on any surprisingly stronger labour market data
print or slower progress in disinflation in the US. Unexpected election outcomes in developed nations
would also cause gyrations in risk sentiment.

Locally, we expect the recovery of global trade, especially in commodities and electrical & electronics
to be the key catalyst for our economic growth in addition to the strong rebound in tourism. Household
spending will continue to drive resilience in domestic demand, underpinned by the robust labour market
and wage growth. We expect Bank Negara Malaysia to maintain OPR at the current 3.00% level to
sustain growth and the mitigate any Ringgit weakness. In terms of our local bond market, strong
demand by local institution funds will continue to provide support while lower corporate bond issuance
see demand outstrip supply. Further foreign inflows are likely when yield differentials with the US
narrows.
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MANAGER'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Strategy

We think that the big adjustment in the UST is done, with market now pricing 50 bps rate cut. While we
do not discount the possibility of zero rate cut in 2024, which would lead to some volatility in the
market, we deem the risk to be a lot lower.

Despite the debatable timing and quantum of rate cuts in 2024, the narrative of rate cuts commencing is
supportive of the local bond market and the MYR as the yield differentials will narrow. We also expect
increased demand from local institutions, especially pension funds and government-linked investment
companies (GLIC). We expect OPR to stay at 3.00% for the rest of 2024 in view of manageable
inflation and MYR volatility. Hence, we will be maintaining our duration between 4 — 6 years, while
focusing on high quality corporate bonds for yield pick-up.

Soft Commissions and Rebates
No soft commissions or rebates were received from any broker for the financial year under review.
Cross Trade

Cross trade transactions have been carried out during the reported period and the Investment
Committee of the Fund has reviewed that such transactions were in the best interest of the Fund,
transacted in the normal course of business at agreed terms and on a fair value basis.

State Affairs of the Fund

There is neither any significant change to the state affairs of the Fund nor any circumstances that
materially affect any interests of the unit holders during the financial year under review.

Asset Allocation

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

% of NAV % of NAV
Unquoted fixed income securities - local 96.38 91.98
Cash and cash equivalents 3.62 8.02
Total 100.00 100.00
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MANAGER'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Income Distribution / Unit Split

The Fund has distributed a total gross distribution of RM0.0300 per unit to the unitholders for the
financial year under review.

NAYV per unit Gross Net NAYV per unit
Ex Date before distribution per distribution per after
distribution (RM) unit (Sen) unit (Sen) distribution (RM)
25-Sep-23 1.0916 0.50 0.50 1.0869
20-Dec-23 1.0982 0.45 0.45 1.0944
23-Jan-24 1.0996 0.30 0.30 1.0968
26-Feb-24 1.1023 0.35 0.35 1.0993
25-Mar-24 1.1036 0.35 0.35 1.1006
23-Apr-24 1.1016 0.35 0.35 1.0984
27-May-24 1.1039 0.35 0.35 1.1010
25-Jun-24 1.1052 0.35 0.35 1.1018

No unit splits were declared for the financial year from 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024.
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MANAGER'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Changes Made To the Fund's Prospectus

A Supplementary Prospectus dated 23 January 2024 (“Effective Date”) was issued during the financial
year to reflect the various changes made to the Fund. This includes:-

1.

Amendment to the definition of “Deed” in “Chapter 1 — Glossary” on page 1 of the Prospectu:

The definition of “Deed” is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

“Deed” - means the deed dated 31 May 2018 as modified by the first supplemental deed
dated 16 January 2023, the second supplemental deed dated 3 October 2023 and
any other supplemental deed that may be entered into between the Trustee and us
in respect of the Fund and registered with the SC from time to time.

Amendment to section 3.1 — Fund Information in “Chapter 3 — The Fund” on page 5 of the
Prospectus

“Deed” * Deed dated 31 May 2018
* First Supplemental Deed dated 16 January 2023
» Second Supplemental Deed dated 3 October 2023

Amendment to section 3.5 — Distribution Policy in “Chapter 3 — The Fund” on page 7 of the
Prospectus

The information on the distribution policy is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the
following:

The Fund intends to distribute income, if any, at least once a year. However, we reserve the right
not to distribute at our absolute discretion if it is not in the best interests of the Unit Holders.

The Fund may distribute from realised income, realised gains and/or capital. The rationale for
distributing out of the Fund’s capital is to allow the Fund the flexibility to (i) declare distribution
in unforeseen circumstances where the Fund has insufficient realised gains and/or realised income
to do so, or (ii) increase the amount of distributable income to the Unit Holders, after taking into
consideration the risk of distributing out of capital.

Distribution out of the Fund’s capital has the effect of lowering the NAV of the Fund, may
reduce part of the Unit Holders’ original investment and may also result in reduced future
returns to Unit Holders. When a substantial amount of the original investment is being
returned to the Unit Holders, it has a risk of eroding the capital of the Fund and may, over
time, cause the NAV of the Fund to fall. The greater the risk of capital erosion that exists, the
greater the likelihood that, due to capital erosion, the value of future returns would also be
diminished.

Please refer to Section 6.9 for information regarding the mode of distribution.
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MANAGER'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Changes Made To the Fund's Prospectus (Continued)

4.

Amendment to section 4.2 — Specific Risks of Investing in the Fund in “Chapter 4 — Risk
Factors” on page 10 of the Prospectus

The following new risk is hereby inserted after “Deferment/suspension of repurchase risk”:

Capital Distribution Risk
The Fund may distribute income out of its capital. The declaration and payment of distribution

may have the effect of lowering the NAV of the Fund. In addition, distribution out of the Fund’s
capital may reduce part of the Unit Holders’ original investment and/or capital gains attributable to
the original investments and may also result in reduced future returns to Unit Holders.

Amendment to section 5.8 — Other Expenses in “Chapter 5 — Fees, Charges and Expenses”
on pages 13 - 14 of the Prospectus

(i) The information in item (0) is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

(o) costs and expenses incurred in relation to the distribution of income and/or capital
(if any);
(if) The information in item (r) is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
(n fees in relation to fund valuation and accounting services; and
(iif) The following new item is hereby inserted immediately after item (r):
(s) any tax now or hereafter imposed by law or required to be paid in connection with

any costs, fees and expenses incurred under sub-paragraphs (a) to (r) above.

Amendment to section 9.1 — Your Rights and Liabilities as a Unit Holder in “Chapter 9 —
Salient Terms of the Deed” on page 27 of the Prospectus

The information in item (a) under the Unit Holders’ rights section is hereby deleted in its entirety
and replaced with the following:

(a) to receive distributions of income and/or capital, if any, of the Fund,

Amendment to section 9.4 — Permitted Expenses Payable Out of the Fund in “Chapter 9 —
Salient Terms of the Deed” on page 29 of the Prospectus

(i) The information in item (0) is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

(0) costs and expenses incurred in relation to the distribution of income and/or capital
(if any);
(if) The information in item (r) is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
(n fees in relation to fund valuation and accounting services; and
(iii) The following new item is hereby inserted immediately after item (r):
(s) any tax now or hereafter imposed by law or required to be paid in connection with

any costs, fees and expenses incurred under sub-paragraphs (a) to (r) above.

10
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MANAGER'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Changes Made To the Fund's Prospectus (Continued)
8.  Amendment to Chapter 13 — Tax Advisers’ Letter on pages 35 to 40 of the Prospectus

The tax advisers’ letter is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with following:

Crowe e e i
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Laved 15 Towser O, Rsga S 11
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Date: 18 Qctaber 2023

Cipus Asset Management Sdn Bad
B.19-2 Marthpoird Offices

Bid Valley Cigy

Mo, 1 KMedan Syed Puira Lhara
SHEAMH Huala Lumpur

Dear Sjre

OPFUS INCOME FLUS FURND
TAZATION OF THE FUND AND UNIT HOLDERS

This lefier is prepared for inclusion in e Sacord Supplermenial Froapacies tor Tha CDpus Imsams
Phus Furd (hereinafles refaned o as “thea Fursd T}, wilh the puarposs of updairg the tax infarmaban
within thi= Praspedius.

1.  INFORMATION OM THE FLIND

Thie Fund is an invesimant scheme that is requined o adhere jo the Gudsbines an Uladl Trosi
Fad gsigad by the Securfes Commission Malaysia (557 pursuans 1o the Capital Markess
and Senvicas Act, 007 {TCAISLT),

Thie acope ol this et is b address on b baxation mplicabons in Malaysia

2. TAXATION OF & UNIT TRUST FUND
21 Taxable income

The taxabon of the Fumd which = a unié frusl scheames s govermad grinsapally by Saclionsg
&1 and E38 of the Ircame Tax Act, 1987 ("MITAT]. Furthear, the Inksnd Ravarue Baaed al
Moloneeia FIREMT) hae iesusd e Publiz Pulisg 722013 Ut Truet Funde Past 1 — An
Creprvirs and Public Rubng 722014 Umit Tres? Funds - Pan |l = Taxstian af Unil Truabs
dabed ZH Mey 2013 and £ Novembar 2004 respectivaly fo explain the tax teaimeants for
LIk Trysg Funds,

Page 1
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MANAGER'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Changes Made To the Fund's Prospectus (Continued)

8.

Amendment to Chapter 13 — Tax Advisers’ Letter on pages 35 to 40 of the Prospectus

(Continued)

Crowe

The Fund's frustee is Maybank Trustess Berad, which is a resident in Malaysia for tax
pupsEas. A5 the rusbee is a tax resident in Malaysia, the Fund is also regarced as a
Malaysian tax resident.

i)

Malaysia sourced income

The income of the Fund in respect of dividends, interest or profits. fram deposits
and cther investmant incoms derived from ar accruing in Malaysia s kabls o
Incoma iax unless specifically exempiad under tha k. In this respect, any gains
or prafits received, in bau ol inerest, Tor fransactions conduciad in sccordan ce with
the pnnciphas of Sharal, will ba reated &8 ineresl and be accorded the sama
reatment as i they weare inlenst in accordance with Secticn 2(7] of 1hbe MITA.
Undear Sectian 2(7) of tha MITA, any relerence to inberesd shall apply, mudsiis
mud@EIcs, b gaing of profits recetred and expensas mcumad, in li=u of iresst in
Iransactian cendwcied n accordance wilh the principlas of Shanah. Tha income ta
rata applicabde o the Fund s 249

Foreign sourced income

The income of the Fund in respact of dividends, inlemast or profits fram deposits
and ather investmsan income derved from outside Maleysia s subject to Malaysian
incorne tax when the income is recaived in Malaysia fram outside Malaysia at the
pravailing tax rate applicable to the Fung

Wihare the Fund has suffered foraign tax on the foreign sourcesd income that is
subject o Malayslan tax, the Fund may claim bilaseral (for 8 country that has a
double tax agresment with Malaysia) or unilaberal (for 8 coungry nat having a

double tax agreament with Malaysia) relief against the Malaysian tax payabie.

Howearver, this is nol applicabée o the Fuend a8 the Fund ig nol permitéed o irmeast in
AVErsEas assabs,

2,2 Exemptincome ! Non tazable Income

(&)

1

Frofits from the realizaticn of investments

Gains from sake of invasbmants will kol be theated as incoma of tha Fund and
hance, are nod subject to income tax fSaction G177 af e WTA]

Dividernd income
Diwidends mecedwad by the Fund from Malaysian entities which are tax exempbed

ara nat subject o income tax, This includes dividends dislribuled under the single
tier ax system [Parsgrepl 128, Schacdule B of fhe MITAJ,

Page 2
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Changes Made To the Fund's Prospectus (Continued)

8.

Amendment to Chapter 13 — Tax Advisers’ Letter on pages 35 to 40 of the Prospectus

(Continued)

fc) [Interestincome

Interest income recedvad by the Fund from the following is exemptad from iIncome

tax:

(i
(i)
(I
()
v

(vi)

Any savings certficates ssued by the Government [Parsgraph 16 to
Scheduls & of the MITAJ,

Securities or bonds issuad or guaranteed by the Govemment [Paragraph
35(a) to Schedule § of the MITA).

Debenturas or sukuk, other than convertitle stock, approved by the
Securities Commission [Paragraph 35(b) to Schedule 6 of the MITAJ,

Bon Simpanan Malaysia (ssued by Central Bank of Malaysia [Paragraph
35(d) to Schedwe & of the MITA);

Deposits with banks icensed under the Fmancal Services Act 2013 or the
Islamic Financial Sarvices Act 2013 or any development financial institution
prescribed under the Development Financial insttutions Act 2002, The
exampton shaill not apply to a wholesale fund which is a money market fund
{Paragraph 35A to Schedufe 6 of the MITAJ,

islamic securities (ncluding sukuk) originating fromn Malaysia, other than
convertible loan stock, (ssusd In any currency other than Ringgst and
approved or authorized by, or lodged with, the Securities Commission or
approved by the Labuan Financial Senvices Aulhority [Paragraph 338 fo
Schedule 6 of the MITA], provided that the exemption shal not apply to:

L intares! paid or credilad 1o a company in a Same group, ar

i, nlerest paid or credited to a bank licensed under the Financial Services
Act 2013, an Islamic bank kicensed under the Islamic Financial Services
Act 2013 or a development financial insttution prescribed under the
Develpment Financial Institutions Act 2002,

il interest paid or credited by a special purpose vehicle 1o & company (both
are in the same group) pursuant 1o the issuance of asset-backed
securifies approved by the Securities Commussion Malaysia or Labuan
Financial Services Authonty:

(vii) Bonds and securities issued by Pengurusan Danaharta Nasional Berhad

Pncome Tax (Exemption) (No. 5) Order 2001]

(viii} Bonds {other than convertible loan stock) isswad by eny company lsted n

(ix)
x)
(i)

Malaysia Exchange of Securities Dealing and Automated Quotatons Berhad
{"MESDAQ" fincome Tex (Exemphion) (No.13) Ordar 2001},

Bonds and securities issued by Pengurusan Danaharta Nasional Barhad /
Dansharta Urus Sdn Bhd [incorne Tax (Exermptian) (No. §) Ovder 2003];
Sukuk Issue which has been issued by Malaysia Global Sukuk Inc [income
Tax (Exemption)(No. 31) Order 2002,

Sukuk ljarah, other than convertibie loan stock, issued in any currency by
1Malaysia Sukuk Global Berhad [Income Tax (Exemption) Order 2010];

Page 3
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Changes Made To the Fund's Prospectus (Continued)

8. Amendment to Chapter 13 — Tax Advisers’ Letter on pages 35 to 40 of the Prospectus

(Continued)

Crowe

z3

(il Sukulk Wiakals, other than convartibla loan slock, issued in any cumency by
Wakala Global Sukuk Behad [income Tax [Exemplicn) (Ve 20 Ovder 204 1)

(xiill Sukuk Kijang issued by BMM Kijang Barhad [facome Tax (Examalion) [(Na.
T3} Orclgr 20737

[xiv) Sukuk Vakala with a naminal valee up 1o US01.5b, other than convertibin
loamn stock, Esusd by the Maleyslen Sovarsign Sukuk Barhad fincams Tax
(Exempior] (fo. 3) Orger 2075 and

(¥v) Sukuk Wakala with 8 nominal valus up to LWS0A.5b |olher than converible
loan stock) issuad by Malaysia Sukuk Global Berhed [incoma Tax
{Exeomaiicus] (’o. 23 Craer JOT6]

{d] Discount income or profit derived

Tax EE L=l edaly] Is given an discount iIncome mecerksad on the aacurnbsEs amd
debentures menfioned in ibems 2.2 (c) (i} o () aboee [Paragraph 35(a) fo
Faragraph J5/a) o Scheduwha § af e MITA]

Deductibility of expenses

Section 331} of the MITA allkews axpensas ncumed “wholy and aschigively inlkbs
praduwction of gross income” o be deduciible against the gross income, 8.9, inbanast
imzurresd on & lsan 1o fnance irvesiments can be deducted againat the diadend or
imerast income from that inwasimant.

In addition, Section 38 alows parial deducton for gfher non-dinect axpensas known as
“parmitled expenses”. Pemitted expenses” comprise the manraper's remuneration,
charges for mairenancs of regisbar of unil valderd, share regairation expensas,
secretarial. audil and accouwntng fees, elephone charges, prinding and stationeny costs
gnd posiage. The emaount deductible is calculaied basad on the farmula below:

Ax B
40

wihare A = the otal of the permitted expanses incurmad Tor that basis penod,
B s gross income consisting of dividends., interest and rent chargeabbs o e
tor that ksaia period, and
C  is the aggragate of the gross incoma consisling of dividands and intarast
[whiether such dividand ar inenest s exermpl or nal), ren, and gains made

from the reslisation of invastmeants (whether chargaable 1o tax or Rot) for
that basis period.

Diwvidend income is desmead to include income distribuied by a unit trust for the purpose
of calczulating the abowve deduclion.

Page 4
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

MANAGER'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Changes Made To the Fund's Prospectus (Continued)

8.

Amendment to Chapter 13 — Tax Advisers’ Letter on pages 35 to 40 of the Prospectus

(Continued)

Crowe

2.5

The special dedusction of expenses s sublect to.a minimum of 10% of the fofal penmitiesd
expenges incwnmed for that basis patdod. The allosable partion of permitted experses will
b deductied from the aggregate income, Shoulkd the deduction axcesds the income
aggagsable o lax, the axcess i nal allewesd to be carried foread far offset against the
mcomae of fulura yaers of asessament

Real Property Gains Tax (“RPGT")

Ganerally, gains on disposal of irvesiments by the Fund wil not be subjest o Income
Tax in Malayssaa as mantioned in 3.2(a),

Movertheless, capiial gains from disposals of chargaabla assets, such as real proparies
of shares in real propery companies will be subject bo RPGT as follkaws:

(&) Gains ansing from disposals made within 3 years from the dade of acguisition of the
chargeable assats are subgect io RPET at tha rate of 30%;

(b} Zains ansing from dsposals made bebween the £ year from the dabe of acguisiton
of tha chergeabls sasats ana gubpecl o RPGST al the rale of 20%:

(£)] zains ansng from disposals made bebween the 5% year from the date of acguisiton
of the changeabls assels ane subject o RPGST al dhe rade of 15%; and

id] Gains arsing from disposals made after 5 years from the date of acquisiton of the
chargeable assels ane subgect 1o RPGET al the rade of 109,

[Schedule 5 of the Resl Property Gaing Tax Act 1976

Sales and Service Tax [(“S3T7)

Fursizanl lo e Sales Tax Act 201 B, sales lax shall ba charged and lEvied on all tasable
gacds which are kacally manufashired or imgoied into Malaysia, Tha rates for sales tax

are 5%, 10% or a specific rale. On the ather hamd, pursuan to the Serdce Tax sct 20138,
senice 18x shall be changed and kevied on any taxable services provided in Malaysia by

@ regisiered person in carmying an his business or amy imported taxable service, The raie
for serdcs tax s 5%,

IF the Fund provides ary taxable services such as managemenl and consulling sarvices
with & iotal velue of RMS00.000 or mona in 8 12 months paried, the Fund shall ba lable
for serdice tax registration and shall be required to charge service tax on the said
Bendcas.

Expensas such a8 managemsan] fzes, irustes lees and olher axpenses paid by the Fund
may be sublect o service lax at 6%.

Page 5
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

MANAGER'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Changes Made To the Fund's Prospectus (Continued)

8.

Amendment to Chapter 13 — Tax Advisers’ Letter on pages 35 to 40 of the Prospectus

(Continued)

Crowe

i TAXATIONOF UNIT HOLDERS

a1

Dis tribution of taxal be i orme

The general provisions under the MIT Aane applcable loincome mosived by uni
haders. In addibon, 1he lax beatnents for unl holders are exglained in the IRBM's
Fublic Ruling 5/2013 — Taxabon of Unil Holders of Unil Trust Funds daled 23 May 2013,
Uit holders will be taxed an et sham of the lolal laxalie incame of e Fund
distsbuled 1o them. This ncome disishulion casies wih i a tax credil fe the tax paid by
the Fund on ils laxabie income. This lax credil may be wilsed by e unil hobes o sal
ofl the tax payable by hemn pursuan b Seclon 110(84] of the MITA. The lax authasbes
il e nd any exhess of lax cnedil owear lax ﬂlﬂ'ﬂﬂbﬂ-‘|ﬂ- e uniil hald s

Distibubans of incame Fam e Fund received by ndwdusgls and olbe: noncarpaale
unil holders wha are msdents in Malaysi for lax purposes will be laxed al graduated
mtes from 1% o 30% . ndividusis and olbers non-corparate uni holdess wha are nat
mesadeniin Malaysia wil be sulject o tax alihe nonssiden! mile appheable of 309 an
e distibulions ol incoms recebed.

Caonparate unil holders, whether residen of nod resident n Makbyssa, will be sulbpec] (o
&l ihe conporale (ax @ie of 24% on he dslshations of income am e Fund
mcened by them. For small and medium scale companes (SME] wih a padup capital
of RMZ2.5 milion and belos and having an annual business income of nol mos: Lhan
FMS5D milion, he coporale lax mies appicabie affechve lom he yearol asssssmen
2023 are a8 Tolbows:

- Chasgesable incoime of Bl Rk 50,000 b ]
- Chasgeables incoms of bebween KM 50,001 and RMES00,000 1%
- Chameabls income excmacing FWMES00 000 : 24%

Howewes, 8 compamy with 8 paid-up capital of nol excesding FMZ. 5 milion will nol
quaiily a5 8 SME under lhe Nallowing cincums ances:

i  mone han 50% of e paid up capital in respec of ordinary shares of Lhe company
& discty o indirecly owned by a “related company”;
mode than 50% of the paid up capital in respect of the ordinary shares of the

“mladed company” s dieclly o ndieclly owned by (he Tisl menBoned comgany;
[+ §

moe than 509 of the paid up capital in respect of the ordinary shares of he Frsl
menboned company and he Telaled company” is disclly of indirecly owned by
anolhes company.

Fage 8
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

MANAGER'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Changes Made To the Fund's Prospectus (Continued)

8.

Amendment to Chapter 13 — Tax Advisers’ Letter on pages 35 to 40 of the Prospectus

(Continued)

Crowe

3.2

3.3

3.4

“Relatad company” is dafined a5 a company which has a paid-up capital @xceading
RK2Z.5 milion in respeact of ordinary shames at 1he beginning of the basis period for &
year af B55855mant.

Effectiva from the year of assasament 2024, the sbove scala rales apphcable lor SME
shall not apply ta companies with more than 20% of B5 ordinary sharas being dinecthy or
indirecily oaned by foreigners, Le. companies incorparated oulside Malaysia or
individuals who are non-Malaysian cilizens.

Distribution of tax exempt income

Distributions of tax exempd income by the Fund from gains from reslsaton of
inwastmans, sxempled inbsrestid@coount incoms and sxempbed dividends including
single figr dividends, will be @xempied from tax n the hands of the it holders,

Distribution to a unit trust holder
Wihere a und trust s a retail money market fund:

{ay A unit halder other than an individeal is chargeable 1o & on income distribusad from
the inferest incame which is exempted under Paragraph 354 of Schedule 8 i the
MITA [Section §1{14) of the MITA]; and

(b)) Accordingly, a unil tust is required o withhold {2 8 24% on disttibuSons made out
of the incoms exempbed under Paragraph 354 of Schedule § o lhe BITA 1o 1he wait
holders othar than an individual, purseant io Section 10808 of the MITA. The tax
wilhiald mesl be remilbed willhin ans month of he datribution @ the IRBM @ avaid
Isie payment panalty of 10%, Unit holders who arg Malaysian tax residents are
entitled far a sel off against the lax charged an ils chargeable incaome under Seclion
110084} in raspect of the tax wihheld. For non-resident unit hodders, the 1ax withheld
is a final tax.

Unit splits, distribution out of capital of the Fund and sale, transfer or redemplion
of units

Unit spins isswed by the Fund end distribution out of capital of the Fund ara not taxabla
in the hands of the it halders, Any gains realised by unil holders. {other than dealess in
SecUries, insuranca Companies o Bnancial instiutions) om the saks, Irenasearn or
redampiicn of tha units are freaied as capial gains and thes, will ot ba faxabla

Howewar, tha gains realisad by & parson trading or caaling in securities, inswancs

caompanies or finandal instibutions are ganerally regarded as business incomea and are
subjact to iIncome tax,

Faga 7
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

MANAGER'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Changes Made To the Fund's Prospectus (Continued)

8. Amendment to Chapter 13 — Tax Advisers’ Letter on pages 35 to 40 of the Prospectus
(Continued)

Crowe

Ve herelly confirm thad, as at the dabe of this keter, the statements made cormectly refect our
nderstanding of he lax posilicn undar he cunfent Malaysian moome 13x legislation and the related
interpretabion and practica tharaof, all of which are subject to change, possisly on a retros peciive
basgis, In addilicen, whil holders ane advisied 1o seak professianal advice on hair respective &y
peoEbions

¥ours fathfully
Crowe KL Tax Sdn Bhd

bl

Foo Meng Huel
Eraculive Direclor, Tex

Page B
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

STATEMENT BY MANAGER

We, SIAW WEI TANG and CHAN CHOONG KONG, being two of the directors of Opus Asset
Management Sdn. Bhd. (the "Manager"), do hereby state that in the opinion of the Manager, the
accompanying financial statements set out on pages 25 to 65 are drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Deeds and give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund as of 30 June
2024 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards.

On behalf of the Manager

SIAW WEI TANG CHAN CHOONG KONG
MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Kuala Lumpur
27 August 2024
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TRUSTEE’S REPORT
To the unit holders of OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND (Fund),

We have acted as Trustee of the Fund for the financial year ended 30 June 2024 and we hereby confirm
to the best of our knowledge, after having made all reasonable enquiries, Opus Asset Management Sdn.
Bhd. has operated and managed the Fund during the financial year covered by these financial
statements in accordance with the following:

(@  Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the management company under the deeds,
securities laws and Guidelines on Unit Trust Funds;

(b)  Valuation and pricing of the Fund are carried out in accordance with the deeds; and

(c)  Any creation and cancellation of units are carried out in accordance with the deeds and any
regulatory requirement.

We are of the view that the distributions are consistent with the investment objective and distribution
policy of the Fund.

For Maybank Trustees Berhad
(Company No. : 196301000109 (5004-P))

Norhazliana Binti Mohammed Hashim
Head, Unit Trust & Corporate Operations

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
27 August 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF
OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND (“the Fund”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in net asset value and statement of cash flows for the financial year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information, as set
out on pages 25 to 65.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Fund as at 30 June 2024 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the financial year
then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards and International Financial
Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and
Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The Manager of the Fund is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Fund and

our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Fund does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF
OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND (CONTINUED)

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Fund, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements of the Fund or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Manager and Trustee for the Financial Statements

The Manager of the Fund is responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Fund that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards and International
Financial Reporting Standards. The Manager is also responsible for such internal control as the
Manager determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Fund that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Trustee is responsible for ensuring
that the Manager maintains proper accounting and other records as are necessary to enable fair
presentation of these financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the Fund, the Manager is responsible for assessing the Fund’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Manager either intend to liquidate the Fund or to
terminate the Fund, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Fund as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF
OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:-

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Fund,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Manager.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Fund or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Fund,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Fund represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Manager regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF
OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND (CONTINUED)

OTHER MATTERS

This report is made solely to the unitholders of the Fund, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

Crowe Malaysia PLT Lean Wei Ee
201906000005 (LLP0018817-LCA) & AF 1018 03827/05/2026 J
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur
27 August 2024
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2024

ASSETS

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”)

Cash and cash equivalents

Amount due from manager (Creation)

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Amount due to Manager
Amount due to Trustee

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSET VALUE
UNITHOLDERS’ FUNDS

Unitholders’ capital
Retained earnings

NET ASSET ATTRIBUTABLE TO
UNITHOLDERS

UNITS IN CIRCULATION

NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT

Note

2024 2023

RM RM
22,245,911 13,248,539
850,808 1,158,946
500 6,528
23,097,219 14,414,013
16,081 10,252
473 302
16,554 10,554
23,080,665 14,403,459
22,701,682 14,395,903
378,983 7,556
23,080,665 14,403,459
20,934,496 13,292,717
1.1025 1.0836

The accompanying material accounting policy information and notes to the financial statements form

an integral part of these financial statements.
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Note

INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest income from unquoted fixed income

securities
Interest income from deposits with

licensed financial institutions
Net gain on financial assets at FVTPL 4
EXPENSES
Management fee 7
Trustee’s fee 8
Other expenses
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
TAXATION 10

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION AND

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Profit after taxation is made up of the following:
Realised amount
Unrealised amount

2024 2023
RM RM
998,757 722,726
46,247 23,334
137,467 351,867
1,182,471 1,097,927
(189,474) (134,219)
(5,573) (3,948)
(145) (201)
(195,192) (138,368)
987,279 959,559
987,279 959,559
755,527 96,615
231,752 862,944
987,279 959,559

The details of the distributions are shown in Note 11 to the financial statements.

The accompanying material accounting policy information and notes to the financial statements form

an integral part of these financial statements.
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSET VALUE
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Unitholders’ Retained
capital earnings Total
RM RM RM
Balance as at 1 July 2022 19,465,048 (952,003) 18,513,045
Movement in net asset value:
Total comprehensive income for the
financial year - 959,559 959,559
Creation of units from applications 4,298,029 - 4,298,029
Creation of units from distributions - - -
Cancellation of units (9,367,174) - (9,367,174)
Distributions (Note 11) - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2023 14,395,903 7,556 14,403,459
Balance as at 1 July 2023 14,395,903 7,556 14,403,459
Movement in net asset value:
Total comprehensive income for the
financial year - 987,279 987,279
Creation of units from applications 14,762,725 - 14,762,725
Creation of units from distributions 305,285 - 305,285
Cancellation of units (6,762,231) - (6,762,231)
Distributions (Note 11) - (615,852) (615,852)
Balance as at 30 June 2024 22,701,682 378,983 23,080,665

The accompanying material accounting policy information and notes to the financial statements form

an integral part of these financial statements.
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

CASH FLOWS (FOR)/FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of investments
Proceeds from redemption of unquoted fixed income securities
Purchase of investments
Interest income received from unquoted fixed income securities
Interest income received from deposits with
licensed financial institutions
Management fee paid
Trustee’s fee paid
Payment for other fees and expenses

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM/(FOR) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from creation of units
Payments for cancellation of units
Payment for distributions

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Deposit with a licensed financial institution
Bank balance

2024 2023
RM RM
3,330,854 16,102,136
1,056,210 -
(13,126,855) (11,355,175)
878,643 629,256
46,247 23,334
(183,645) (136,965)
(5,402) (4,028)
(145) (201)
(8,004,093) 5,258,357
15,074,038 4,299,600
(6,762,231) (9,367,174)
(615,852) -
7,695,955 (5,067,574)
(308,138) 190,783
1,158,946 968,163
850,808 1,158,946
798,011 1,103,803
52,797 55,143
850,808 1,158,946

The accompanying material accounting policy information and notes to the financial statements form an

integral part of these financial statements.
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

The following accounting policies have been used in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to the financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements of the Fund are prepared under the historical cost convention and
modified to include other bases of valuation as disclosed in other sections under material
accounting policy information, and in compliance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards
(“MFRSs”) and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRS and IFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported financial year.
It also requires the Manager to exercise their judgement in the process of applying the Fund’s
accounting policies. Although these estimates and judgement are based on the Manager’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may differ.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note J.

(@) During the current financial year, the Fund has adopted the following amendments to
accounting standards (including the consequential amendments, if any):-

Amendments to MFRSs (Including The Consequential Amendments)

MFRS 17: Insurance Contracts

Amendments to MFRS 17: Insurance Contracts

Amendment to MFRS 17: Initial Application of MFRS 17 and MFRS 9 - Comparative
Information

Amendments to MFRS 101: Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to MFRS 108: Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to MFRS 112: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

Amendments to MFRS 112: International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules

The adoption of the above amendments accounting standards (including the consequential
amendments, if any) did not have any material impact of the Fund's financial statements.
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

(b)

The Fund has not applied in advance the following accounting standards (including the
consequential amendments, if any) that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting
Standards Board ("MASB") but are not yet effective for the current financial year :-

MFRSs (Including The Consequential Amendments) Effective Date
Amendments to MFRS 16: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
Amendments to MFRS 101: Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current 1 January 2024
Amendments to MFRS 101: Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
Amendments to MFRS 107 and MFRS 7: Supplier Finance Arrangements | 1 January 2024
Amendments to MFRS 121: Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
Amendments to MFRS 9 and MFRS 7: Amendments to the Classification

and Measurement of Financial Instruments 1 January 2026
MFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 1 January 2027
MFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accounting Disclosure 1 January 2027
Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128: Sale or Contribution

of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture Deferred

The adoption of the above accounting standards (including the consequential amendments, if
any) is expected to have no material impact on the financial statements of the Fund upon its

initial application.

30



OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

Income recognition

Interest income from deposits with a licensed financial institution and unquoted fixed income
securities are recognised based on effective interest rate method on an accrual basis.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial assets (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Realised gain and loss on sale of unquoted fixed income securities is measured by the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of investment, determined on cost
adjusted for accretion of discount or amortisation of premium.

Distributions

Distributions are at the discretion of the Fund. A distribution to the Fund’s unitholders is
accounted for as a deduction from realised reserve. A proposed distribution is recognised as a
liability in the year in which it is approved for appropriation.

Taxation

Current tax assets and liabilities are the expected amount of income tax recoverable or payable to
the taxation authorities.

Current taxes are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period and are recognised in statement of comprehensive
income except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognised outside statement of
comprehensive income (either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity).

Presentation and functional currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Fund are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Fund operates (the “functional currency”). The

financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM"), which is the Fund’s presentation
and functional currency.
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position when
the Fund has become a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial instruments are classified as financial assets, financial liabilities or equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and their definitions in MFRS 132.
Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument classified as a liability are
reported as an expense or income. Distributions to holders of financial instruments classified as
equity are charged directly to equity.

Financial instruments are offset when the Fund has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends to settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

A financial instrument is recognised initially at its fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument (other than a financial
instrument at fair value through profit or loss) are added to/deducted from the fair value on initial
recognition, as appropriate. Transaction costs on the financial instrument at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments recognised in the statement of financial position are disclosed in the
individual policy statement associated with each item.

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost
or fair value (through profit or loss, or other comprehensive income), depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Debt instruments
(i) Amortised cost

The financial asset is held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest. Interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When the asset
has subsequently become credit-impaired, the interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Amortised cost (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts), excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the
financial asset or a shorter period (where appropriate).

Fair value through other comprehensive income

The financial asset is held for both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
asset, where the asset’s cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve, except for the recognition of impairment, interest
income and foreign exchange difference which are recognised directly in profit or loss.
Interest income is calculated using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss

All other financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value.

Unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at ‘fair
value through profit or loss’ category are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income in the financial year in which they arise.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

(iii) Fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Unquoted fixed income securities denominated in Ringgit Malaysia are revalued on a daily
basis based on fair value prices quoted by a bond pricing agency (“BPA”) registered with the
Securities Commission of Malaysia (“SC”). Where such quotations are not available or
where the Manager is of the view that the price quoted by the BPA for a specified unquoted
fixed income securities differs from the market price by more than 20 basis points, the
Manager may use the market price, provided that the Manager:

(i) Records its basis for using a non-BPA price;
(if) Obtain necessary internal approvals to use the non-BPA price; and
(iii) Keeps an audit trail of all decisions and basis for adopting the market yield.

The Fund reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing
those assets change.

Financial liabilities

(i)

(i)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are either held
for trading or are designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise. The changes in fair value of these
financial liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

(ii) Other financial liabilities (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts), through the expected life of the financial liability or a shorter
period (where appropriate).

Derecognition

A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the financial asset expire or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. On derecognition of a financial
asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the carrying amount of the assets and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on
derecognition of a debt instrument classified as fair value through other comprehensive income,
the cumulative gain and loss previously accumulated in the fair value reserve is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. In contrast, there is no subsequent reclassification of the fair value reserve
to profit or loss following the derecognition of an equity investment.

A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. On derecognition of a financial liability, the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Fund recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt
instruments that are measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the receivables, deposits with financial institutions and cash at bank.

The expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Fund in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Fund expects to
receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument. The Fund always recognises
lifetime expected credit losses for the receivables using the simplified approach. The expected
credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Fund’s
historical credit loss experience and are adjusted for forward-looking information (including time
value of money where appropriate).

For all other financial instruments, the Fund recognises lifetime expected credit losses when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Fund
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses.

The Fund recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt instruments that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve, and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial
asset in the statement of financial position.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances, deposits with a licensed financial institution,
and short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash

and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value with original maturity periods of
three months or less.
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Unitholders' capital

The unitholders’ capital is classified as equity.

The Fund issues cancellable units, which are cancelled at the unitholder’s option and are classified
as equity. Cancellable units can be put back to the Fund at any time for cash equal to a
proportionate share of the Fund’s Net Asset Value (“NAV”). The outstanding units are carried at
the redemption amount that is payable as at the date of the statement of financial position if the
unitholder exercises the riaht to put the unit back to the Fund.

Units are created and cancelled at the unitholder’s option at prices based on the Fund’s NAV per
unit at the time of creation or cancellation. The Fund’s NAV is calculated by dividing the net
assets attributable to unitholders with the total number of outstanding units.

The units in the Fund are puttable instruments which entitle the unitholders to a pro-rata share of
the Net Asset of the Fund. The units are subordinated and have identical features. There is no
contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other that the obligation on the
Fund to repurchase the units. The total expected cash flows from the units in the Fund over the
life of the units are based on the change in the Net Asset of the Fund.

Segmental information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting used by chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments that undertakes strategic decisions
for the Fund.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Manager believes that there are no key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
other than as disclosed below:-

Fair value estimates for unquoted financial assets

The Fund carries certain financial assets that are not traded in an active market at fair value. The
Fund uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. The amount of fair value
changes would differ if the Fund uses different valuation methodologies and assumptions, and
eventually affect profit and/or other comprehensive income. The carrying amount of these
financial assets as at the reporting date is disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Income taxes

There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination may be
different from the initial estimate. The Fund recognises tax liabilities based on its understanding
of the prevailing tax laws and estimates of whether such taxes will be due in the ordinary course
of business. Where the final outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recognised, such difference will impact the income tax expense and deferred tax balances
in the vear in which such determination is made.

Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies
Manager believes that there are no instances of application of critical judgement in applying the

Fund’s accounting policies which will have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements.
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INFORMATION ON THE FUND

OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Fund’) was constituted pursuant to
the execution of a deed dated 31 May 2018, a first supplemetal deed dated 16 January 2023 and a
second supplemental deed dated 3 October 2023 between Opus Asset Management Sdn. Bhd. as the
Manager and Maybank Trustees Berhad as the Trustee. The Fund was launched on 28 September
2018 and will continue to be in operation until determined otherwise by the Manager or the Trustee
as provided under the Deed.

The principal place of business is located at B-19-2, Northpoint Offices, Mid Valley City, No.1,
Medan Syed Putra Utara, 59200 Kuala Lumpur.

The objective of the Fund is to achieve higher returns than Maybank 12-month fixed deposit rate
over the medium to long term, while preserving capital and providing an opportunity for income.

The Manager, Opus Asset Management Sdn. Bhd., a company incorporated in Malaysia, is
principally engaged in the business of fund management and the provision of financial advisory
Services.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Manager on 27 August 2024.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Fund is exposed to a variety of risks which include management risk, market risk (inclusive of
price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk, non-compliance risk and capital risk

management.

Financial risk management is carried out through internal control processes adopted by the Manager
and adherence to the investment restrictions as stipulated in the Fund’s Prospectus.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments of the Fund are as follows:

Financial assets

at fair value
through Amortised

profit or loss cost Total
RM RM RM

2024
Unquoted fixed income securities 22,245,911 - 22,245,911
Cash and cash equivalents - 850,808 850,808
Amount due from manager (Creation) - 500 500
22,245,911 851,308 23,097,219

2023
Unquoted fixed income securities 13,248,539 - 13,248,539
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,158,946 1,158,946
Amount due from manager (Creation) - 6,528 6,528
13,248,539 1,165,474 14,414,013

Management risk

Poor management of the Fund may jeopardise the investment of each unitholder. Therefore, it is
important for the Manager to set the investment policies and appropriate strategies to be in line with
the investment objective before any investment activities can be considered. However, there can be

no guarantee that these measures will produce the desired results.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of an investment of the Fund will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk).

The Fund’s overall exposure to price risk was as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Interest receivables

2024 2023

RM RM
21,929,720 13,070,923
316,191 177,616
22,245,911 13,248,539
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Price risk (continued)
The table below summarises the sensitivity of the Fund’s net asset value and profit after tax to

movements in prices of investments. The analysis is based on the assumption that the price of the
investments fluctuates by 5% with all other variables held constant.

Impact on
Change in profit
price of Market after tax and
investments value  net asset value
% RM RM
2024 -5 20,833,234 (1,096,486)
0 21,929,720 -
+5 23,026,206 1,096,486
2023 -5 12,417,377 (653,546)
0 13,070,923 -
+5 13,724,469 653,546

Interest rate risk

In general, when interest rates rise, unquoted fixed income securities prices will tend to fall and vice
versa. Therefore, the net asset value of the Fund may also tend to fall when interest rates rise or are
expected to rise. However, investors should be aware that should the Fund hold an unquoted fixed
income securities till maturity, such price fluctuations would dissipate as it approaches maturity,
and thus the growth of the net asset value shall not be affected at maturity. In order to mitigate
interest rates exposure of the Fund, the Manager will manage the duration of the portfolio via
shorter or longer tenured assets depending on the view of the future interest rate trend of the
Manager, which is based on its continuous fundamental research and analysis.

This risk is crucial since bond portfolio management depends on forecasting interest rate

movements. Unquoted fixed income securities with longer maturity and lower yield coupon rates
are more susceptible to interest rate movements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Investors should note that unquoted fixed income securities (such as the bonds held by the Fund)
and money market instruments are subject to interest rate fluctuations. Such investments may be
subject to unanticipated rise in interest rates which may impair the ability of the issuers to make
payments of interest and principal, especially if the issuers are highly leveraged. An increase in
interest rates may therefore increase the potential for default by an issuer.

The table below summarises the sensitivity of the Fund’s net asset value to movements in prices of
unquoted fixed income securities held by the Fund as a result of movement in interest rate. The
analysis is based on the assumptions that the interest rate increased and decreased by 1% with all
other variables held constant.

Impact on profit after tax/
net asset value

2024 2023
9% change in interest rate RM RM
+1% (39,572) (23,227)
-1% 39,480 23,595

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause financial loss for the
Fund by failing to discharge an obligation. The Fund is exposed to the risk of credit-related losses
that can occur as a result of a counterparty or issuer being unable or unwilling to honour its
contractual obligations to make timely repayments of interest, principal and proceeds from
realisation of investments. These credit exposures exist within financing relationships, derivatives
and other transactions.

The Fund Manager manages the Fund’s credit risk by undertaking credit evaluation and close
monitoring of any changes to the issuer/counterparty’s credit profile to minimise such risk. It is the
Fund’s policy to buy financial instruments with reputable counterparties. The Manager also closely
monitors the creditworthiness of the Fund’s counterparties by reviewing their credit ratings and
credit profiles on a regular basis.

At the reporting date, the Fund’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying

amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the statement of financial position. None of
the Fund’s financial assets were past due or impaired as at the end of the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)

The Manager consider these banks and financial institutions have low credit risks. Therefore, the
Manager is of the view that the loss allowance is immaterial and hence, it is not provided for.

The following table sets out the credit risk concentration of the Fund:

Unquoted Cash Amount
fixed income and cash due from

securities equivalents Manager Total
RM RM RM RM

2024
AAA 5,450,043 850,808 - 6,300,851
AAl 2,117,169 - - 2,117,169
AA+ 1,544,747 - - 1,544,747
AA2 6,714,295 - - 6,714,295
AA3 2,325,723 - - 2,325,723
AA- 2,037,759 - - 2,037,759
Bl 784,279 - - 784,279
NR-GG ** 1,271,896 - - 1,271,896
Other - - 500 500
22,245 911 850,808 500 23,097,219

2023
AAA 4,469,330 1,158,946 - 5,628,276
AAl 2,925,533 - - 2,925,533
AA2 3,060,317 - - 3,060,317
AA- 1,466,372 - - 1,466,372
BBB2 1,326,987 - - 1,326,987
Other - - 6,528 6,528
13,248,539 1,158,946 6,528 14,414,013

** NR-GG - Unrated (Government guaranteed)
The financial assets of the Fund are neither past due nor impaired.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations.
Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to sell, possibly preventing the Fund
from selling such illiquid securities at an advantageous time or price. Unit trust fund with principal
investment strategies that involve securities or securities with substantial market and/or credit risk
tend to have the greater exposure to liquidity risk. As part of its risk management, the Manager will
attempt to manage the liquidity of the Fund through asset allocation and diversification strategies
within the portfolio. The Manager will also conduct constant fundamental research and analysis to
forecast future liquidity of its investments.

The table below summarises the Fund’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining year as at the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Maturity Analysis
Between
Less than 1 month
1 month to 1 year Total
RM RM RM
2024
Amount due to Manager 16,081 - 16,081
Amount due to Trustee 473 - 473
16,554 - 16,554
2023
Amount due to Manager 10,252 - 10,252
Amount due to Trustee 302 - 302
10,554 - 10,554

Non-compliance risk

This is the risk of the Manager not complying with the internal policies, the Deeds of the Fund, all
applicable laws or guidelines issued by the regulators. This may occur as a result of system failure
or the inadvertence of the Manager. The magnitude of such risk and its impact on the Fund and/or
unitholders are dependent on the nature and severity of the non-compliance. Non-compliance may
adversely affect the Fund especially if the investment of the Fund has to be disposed at a lower
price to rectify the non-compliance.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital risk management

2024 2023
RM RM

The capital of the Fund is represented by equity consisting of :-
Unitholders’ capital 22,701,682 14,395,903
Retained earnings 378,983 7,556

The amount of equity can change significantly on a daily basis as the Fund is subject to daily
subscriptions and redemptions at the discretion of unitholders. The Fund’s objective when
managing capital is to safeguard the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for unitholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital
base to support the development of the investment activities of the Fund.

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price).

The fair values of financial assets traded in active market (such as publicly traded derivatives and
trading securities) are based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the financial year end
date.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The fair value of financial assets that are not traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Fund uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each year end date. Valuation techniques used for non-standardised
financial instruments such as options, currency swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives,
include the use of comparable recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that
are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation
techniques commonly used by market participants making the maximum use of market inputs and
relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

For instruments for which there is no active market, the Fund may use internally developed models,
which are usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally recognised as standard
within the industry. Valuation models are used primarily to value unlisted equity, debt securities
and other debt instruments for which market were or have been inactive during the financial year.
Some of the inputs to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estimated based
on assumptions.
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FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (CONTINUED)

The output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined
with certainty, and valuation techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant to the
positions the Fund holds.

Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for additional factors including
model risk, liquidity risk and counterparty risk.

The fair values are based on the following methodologies and assumptions:

(i) For bank balances, deposits and placements with financial institutions with maturities less than
1 year, the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

(if) The carrying value less impairment of receivables and payables are assumed to approximate
their fair values. The carrying values of financial assets and financial liabilities approximate
their fair values due to their short term nature.

Fair value hierarchy

The Fund adopted MFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' in respect of disclosures about the degree of
reliability of fair value measurement. This requires the Fund to classify fair value measurements
using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

e Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

e Level 3: Inputs for the asset and liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair
value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require
significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement.

Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgement by the Fund. The
Fund considers observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed
or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are
actively involved in the relevant market.
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FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (CONTINUED)

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Fund’s financial assets (by class)
measured at fair value:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RM RM RM RM
2024
Financial assets at
FVTPL

- Unquoted fixed
income securities - 22,245,911 - 22,245,911

2023
Financial assets at
FVTPL

- Unquoted fixed
income securities - 13,248,539 - 13,248,539

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are considered to be active but are valued based on
quoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable
inputs are classified within Level 2. Level 2 instruments include unquoted fixed income securities.
As Level 2 instruments include positions that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject to
transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or nontransferability,
which are generally based on available market information. The Fund's policies on valuation of
these financial assets are stated in Note F.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2024 2023
RM RM
Financial assets designated as FVTPL.:
- Unquoted fixed income securities 22,245,911 13,248,539
2024 2023
RM RM
Net gain on financial assets at FVTPL comprised:
- net realised loss on sale of financial assets at FVTPL (94,285) (511,077)
- net unrealised gain on changes in fair value 231,752 862,944
137,467 351,867
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets designated as FVTPL as at 30 June 2024 are as follows:

Nominal
Name of Counter value Cost
RM

UNQUOTED FIXED INCOME SECURITIES
CORPORATE BONDS

AUTO

4.81% APM
AUTOMOTIVE

HOLDINGS BERHAD

15/08/2025 AA2 1,000,000 1,018,654

BANK
4.40% CIMB GROUP

HOLDINGS BERHAD
08/09/2027 AA2 1,500,000 1,525,645

4.51% RHB BANK

BERHAD 19/01/2028
AA2 1,500,000 1,548,846

3,074,491

Fair value
as at
30.06.2024
RM

1,023,044

1,544,465

1,560,426

3,104,891

Fair value as
at 30.06.2024
expressed as a
percentage of
value of the
Fund

%

4.43

6.69

6.76

13.45
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets designated as FVTPL as at 30 June 2024 are as follows: (continued)

Fair value

Nominal as at

Name of Counter value Cost 30.06.2024
RM RM

UNQUOTED FIXED INCOME SECURITIES (CONTINUED)
CORPORATE BONDS (CONTINUED)
FINANCE

4.27% LEMBAGA

PEMBIAYAAN

PERUMAHAN

SEKTOR AWAM

02/09/2039 NR-GG 500,000 520,011 520,056

5.50% SABAH

DEVELOPMENT

BANK BERHAD

24/04/2026 AAl 1,300,000 1,331,290 1,342,700

4.25% TOYOTA

CAPITAL MALAYSIA

SDN BHD 28/07/2028

AAA 750,000 754,607 762,894

4.32% TOYOTA

CAPITAL MALAYSIA

SDN BHD 26/09/2028

AAA 1,400,000 1,429,095 1,448,485

Fair value as
at 30.06.2024
expressed as a
percentage of
value of the
Fund

%

2.25

5.82

3.31

6.28

49



OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets designated as FVTPL as at 30 June 2024 are as follows: (continued)

Fair value as
at 30.06.2024
expressed as a

Fair value percentage of
Nominal as at value of the
Name of Counter value Cost 30.06.2024 Fund
RM RM %
UNQUOTED FIXED INCOME SECURITIES (CONTINUED)
CORPORATE BONDS (CONTINUED)
FINANCE (CONTINUED)
5.30% ZAMARAD
ASSETS BERHAD
09/08/2030 AA2 1,000,000 1,020,183 1,037,173 4.49
5,055,186 5,111,308 22.15
GAMING
5.19% GENTING
RMTN BERHAD
25/03/2027 AA1 750,000 760,451 774,469 3.36
INFRASTRUCTURE
4.06% PRASARANA
MALAYSIA BERHAD
28/06/2039 NR-GG 750,000 750,250 751,840 3.26
POWER
5.04% SPR ENERGY
(M) SDN BHD
17/07/2025 B1 850,000 935,953 784,279 3.40
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets designated as FVTPL as at 30 June 2024 are as follows: (continued)

Fair value
Nominal as at
Name of Counter value Cost 30.06.2024
RM RM
UNQUOTED FIXED INCOME SECURITIES (CONTINUED)
CORPORATE BONDS (CONTINUED)
POWER (CONTINUED)
5.90% TADAU
ENERGY SDN BHD
29/07/2030 AA3 1,000,000 1,097,293 1,104,863
4.78% TENAGA
NASIONAL BERHAD
29/08/2033 AAA 500,000 530,204 537,779
2,563,450 2,426,921
PROPERTY
4.94% AC FIRST
GENESIS BERHAD
29/05/2028 AA2 550,000 540,670 540,769
4.28% SIME DARBY
PROPERTY BERHAD
21/08/2030 AA+
1,500,000 1,523,042 1,544,747
2,063,712 2,085,516

Fair value as
at 30.06.2024
expressed as a
percentage of
value of the
Fund

%

4.78

2.33

10.51

2.34

6.69

9.03
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets designated as FVTPL as at 30 June 2024 are as follows: (continued)

Fair value
Nominal as at
Name of Counter value Cost 30.06.2024
RM RM
UNQUOTED FIXED INCOME SECURITIES (CONTINUED)
CORPORATE BONDS (CONTINUED)
TOLL ROAD
5.16% AMANAT
LEBUHRAYA
RAKYAT BERHAD
13/10/2031 AAA 1,750,000 1,819,275 1,902,190
5.64% LEBUHRAYA
DUKE FASA 3 SDN
BHD 22/08/2031 AA- 1,400,000 1,501,686 1,507,846
3,320,961 3,410,036
TRANSPORT/PORT
5.75% MALAYSIA
AIRPORTS HOLDINGS
BERHAD 13/12/2024
AA2
1,000,000 1,029,073 1,008,418
4.83% MMC PORT
HOLDINGS SDN BHD
08/04/2032 AA- 500,000 517,158 529,913

Fair value as
at 30.06.2024
expressed as a
percentage of
value of the
Fund

%

8.24

6.53

14.77

4.37

2.30
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets designated as FVTPL as at 30 June 2024 are as follows: (continued)

Falr value as
at 30.06.2024
expressed as a
Fair value percentage of
Nominal as at value of the
Name of Counter value Cost 30.06.2024 Fund
RM RM %
UNQUOTED FIXED INCOME SECURITIES (CONTINUED)
CORPORATE BONDS (CONTINUED)
TRANSPORT/PORT (CONTINUED)
5.01% MTT SHIPPING
SDN BHD 30/08/2024
AA3 1,200,000 1,220,259 1,220,860 5.29
2,766,490 2,759,191 11.96
WATER
4.63% PENGURUSAN
AIR SPV BERHAD
03/02/2033 AAA 750,000 763,985 798,695 3.46
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS 22,137,630 22,245,911 96.38
TOTAL UNQUOTED
FIXED INCOME SECURITIES 22,137,630 22,245,911 96.38

ACCUMULATED UNREALISED
GAIN 108,281

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS AT
FVTPL 22,245,911
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets designated as FVTPL as at 30 June 2023 are as follows:

Nominal
Name of Counter value

UNQUOTED FIXED INCOME SECURITIES

CORPORATE BONDS

AUTO

4.81% APM
AUTOMOTIVE

HOLDINGS BERHAD

15/08/2025 AA2 1,000,000

BANK

4.40% CIMB GROUP
HOLDINGS BERHAD
08/09/2027 AA2 1,000,000

4.91% UNITED

OVERSEAS BANK

(MALAYSIA) BERHAD

27/10/2027 AAl 500,000

Cost
RM

1,018,522

1,013,863

504,372

1,518,235

Fair value
as at
30.06.2023
RM

1,020,032

1,021,363

516,637

1,538,000

Falr value as
at 30.06.2023
expressed as a
percentage of
value of the
Fund

%

7.08

7.09

3.59

10.68
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets designated as FVTPL as at 30 June 2023 are as follows: (continued)

Fair value
Nominal as at
Name of Counter value Cost 30.06.2023
RM RM
UNQUOTED FIXED INCOME SECURITIES (CONTINUED)
CORPORATE BONDS (CONTINUED)
FINANCE
5.50% AL-DZAHAB
ASSETS BERHAD
20/09/2023 AAA 750,000 787,698 762,573
6.35% AL-DZAHAB
ASSETS BERHAD
20/03/2024 AAA 250,000 262,988 258,253
5.50% SABAH
DEVELOPMENT
BANK BERHAD
24/04/2026 AA1 1,300,000 1,331,095 1,339,580
4.25% TOYOTA
CAPITAL MALAYSIA
SDN BHD 28/07/2028
AAA 750,000 754,607 752,747
3,136,388 3,113,153

Falr value as
at 30.06.2023
expressed as a
percentage of
value of the
Fund

%

5.29

1.79

9.30

5.23

21.61
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets designated as FVTPL as at 30 June 2023 are as follows: (continued)

Falr value as
at 30.06.2023
expressed as a
Fair value percentage of
Nominal as at value of the
Name of Counter value Cost 30.06.2023 Fund
RM RM %
UNQUOTED FIXED INCOME SECURITIES (CONTINUED)
CORPORATE BONDS (CONTINUED)
GAMING
5.07% GENM CAPITAL
BHD 05/05/2028 AA1 300,000 302,375 302,621 2.10
5.19% GENTING
RMTN BERHAD
25/03/2027 AAL 750,000 760,238 766,695 5.32
1,062,613 1,069,316 7.42
POWER
5.04% SPR ENERGY
(M) SDN BHD
17/07/2025 BBB2 1,350,000 1,486,328 1,326,987 9.21
4.78% TENAGA
NASIONAL BERHAD
20/08/2033 AAA 500,000 530,204 529,284 3.67
2,016,532 1,856,271 12.88
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets designated as FVTPL as at 30 June 2023 are as follows: (continued)

Nominal
Name of Counter value

UNQUOTED FIXED INCOME SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

CORPORATE BONDS (CONTINUED)
PROPERTY

5.10% ETERNAL ICON

SDN BHD 31/03/2025
AAA 300,000

TOLL ROAD

5.16% AMANAT

LEBUHRAYA

RAKYAT BERHAD

13/10/2031 AAA 1,000,000

5.64% LEBUHRAYA
DUKE FASA 3 SDN
BHD 22/08/2031 AA- 1,400,000

Cost

RM

313,456

1,011,168

1,501,470

2,512,638

Fair value

as at

30.06.2023

RM

308,122

1,071,688

1,466,372

2,538,060

Falr value as
at 30.06.2023
expressed as a
percentage of
value of the
Fund

%

2.14

7.44

10.18

17.62
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets designated as FVTPL as at 30 June 2023 are as follows: (continued)

Falr value as
at 30.06.2023
expressed as a

Fair value percentage of
Nominal as at value of the
Name of Counter value Cost 30.06.2023 Fund
RM RM %
UNQUOTED FIXED INCOME SECURITIES (CONTINUED)
CORPORATE BONDS (CONTINUED)
TRANSPORT/PORT
5.75% MALAYSIA
AIRPORTS HOLDINGS
BERHAD 13/12/2024
1,000,000 1,029,546 1,018,922 7.08
AA2
WATER
4.63% PENGURUSAN
AIR SPV BERHAD
03/02/2033 AAA 750,000 764,080 786,663 5.47
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS 13,372,010 13,248,539 01.98
TOTAL UNQUOTED
FIXED INCOME SECURITIES 13,372,010 13,248,539 91.98

ACCUMULATED UNREALISED
LOSS (123,471)

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS AT
FVTPL 13,248,539
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Deposit with a licensed financial institution
Bank balance

Deposit with a licensed financial institution

include interest receivable (RM)
Weighted average rate of return (%)

Average maturity (days)

UNITS IN CIRCULATION

At the beginning of the financial year
Creation of units during the financial year
Arising from distributions during the financial year
Arising from applications during the financial year
Cancellation of units during the financial year

At the end of the financial year

MANAGEMENT FEE

2024 2023

RM RM
798,011 1,103,803
52,797 55,143
850,808 1,158,946
197 86
3.00 2.85
3 3

2024 2023

Units Units
13,292,717 18,184,392

278,346 -

13,549,848 4,069,718

(6,186,415) (8,961,393)
20,934,496 13,292,717

In accordance with the Deed, the Manager is entitled to a management fee at a rate not exceeding
3.00% (2023: 3.00%) per annum of the net asset value of the Fund, calculated on a daily basis.

The management fee provided in the financial statements is 0.85% (2023: 0.85%) per annum based

on the net asset value of the Fund, calculated on a daily basis for the financial year.

There will be no further liability to the Manager in respect of the management fee other than the

amounts recognised above.
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

TRUSTEE’S FEE

In accordance with the Deed, the Trustee is entitled to a trustee fee at a rate not exceeding 0.025%
(2023: 0.025%) per annum of the net asset value of the Fund, subject to a minimum of RM12,000
per annum calculated on a daily basis.

The Trustee’s fee provided in the financial statements is 0.025% (2023: 0.025%) per annum based
on the net asset value of the Fund, calculated on a daily basis for the financial year.

There will be no further liability to the Trustee in respect of the Trustee’s fee other than the amounts
recognised above.

The Trustee’s fee for the current financial year amounted to RM5,573 (2023: RM3,948). The
remaining RM6,427 (2023: RM8,052) of the Trustee's fee is borne by the Manager.

AUDIT FEE AND TAX AGENT’S FEE

The auditors’ remuneration and tax agent’s fees for the Fund for the current financial year amounted
to RM6,500 (2023: RM6,300) and RM3,000 (2023: RM3,000) respectively were borne by the
Manager.

TAXATION

(@) Tax charge for the financial year

2024 2023
RM RM

Current taxation - -
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

10 TAXATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense

The numerical reconciliation between profit before taxation multiplied by the Malaysian
statutory income tax rate and the tax expense of the Fund is as follows:

Profit before taxation

Tax calculated at a tax rate of 24% (2023: 24%)
Tax effects of:

Investment income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Restriction on tax deductible expenses for
unit trust funds

11 DISTRIBUTIONS

Distributions to unitholders are from the following sources:

Interest income from unquoted fixed income securities
Interest income from deposits with licensed
financial institutions at amortised cost
Realised loss on sale of investments
Gross realised income
Less: Expenses
Gross distribution amount
Less: Taxation

Net distribution amount

2024 2023
RM RM
987,279 959,559
236,947 230,294
(283,793) (263,502)
1,372 995
45,474 32,213
2024 2023
RM RM
1,539,717 -
82,467 -
(712,579) -
909,605 -
(293,753) -
615,852 -
615,852 -
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

DISTRIBUTIONS (CONTINUED)

Gross Net

Entitlement Payment distribution distribution
date date per_unit (sen) per unit (sen)
2024 25-Sep-2023 26-Sep-2023 0.50 0.50
20-Dec-2023 21-Dec-2023 0.45 0.45
23-Jan-2024 24-Jan-2024 0.30 0.30
26-Feb-2024 27-Feb-2024 0.35 0.35
25-Mar-2024 26-Mar-2024 0.35 0.35
23-Apr-2024 24-Apr-2024 0.35 0.35
27-May-2024 28-May-2024 0.35 0.35
25-Jun-2024 26-Jun-2024 0.35 0.35
3.00 3.00

Gross distribution is derived using total income less total expenses.

Gross distribution per unit is derived from gross realised income less expenses divided by the
number of units in circulation, while net distribution per unit is derived from gross realised income
less expenses and taxation divided by the number of units in circulation.

2024 2023
RM RM
Unrealised gain incurred during the financial year 231,752 862,944

Composition of distribution payment source and payment mode during the financial year are as
follows:-

Composition 2024
% RM
Composition of distribution source:
Income distribution 93% 574,985
Capital distribution 7% 40,867
Total distribution 100% 615,852
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO (“TER”)
2024 2023
% %
TER 0.88 0.88

Total expense ratio includes management fee, Trustee’s fee and other expenses which is calculated
as follows:

TER=(A+B+C)x100
D

A = Management fee
B = Trustee’s fee
C = Other expenses
D = Average net asset value of the Fund for the financial year, calculated on a daily basis
2024 2023
RM RM
The average net asset value of the Fund
calculated on a daily basis 22,259,951 15,788,674
PORTFOLIO TURNOVER RATIO (“PTR”)
2024 2023
PTR (times) 0.37 0.87

PTR is derived from the following calculation:

(Total acquisitions for the financial year + total disposals for the financial year) + 2
Average net asset value of the Fund for the financial year calculated on a daily basis

2024 2023
RM RM
where:
Total acquisitions for the financial year 13,126,855 11,355,175
Total disposals for the financial year — 3,330,854 = 16,102,136
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

UNITS HELD BY THE MANAGER AND PARTIES RELATED TO THE MANAGER

The related parties and their relationship with the Fund are as follows:

Related parties Relationship
Opus Asset Management Sdn Bhd The Manager
Persons connected with the Manager (a) Employees and related to the Manager

(b) A wholesale fund that is managed by the Manager

The number of units held by the Manager is as follows:

2024 2024 2023 2023
Units RM Units RM
The Manager 11 12 10 11
Person connected with
the Manager 10,060,210 11,091,566 1,111,051 1,203,890

The units are held beneficially by the Manager for booking purposes and were transacted at the

prevailing market price.

Other than the related party disclosures mentioned elsewhere in the financial statements, there are
no other significant related party transactions during the financial year or balances as at the end of

the financial year.
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OPUS INCOME PLUS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 (CONTINUED)

TRANSACTIONS WITH BROKERS

Broker/ Value of
financial institution trades”
RM

Percentage
of total
trades

%

Brokerage
fees
RM

Percentage
of total
brokerage
fees

%

Details of transactions by the Fund for the financial year ended 30 June 2024 are as follows:

CIMB Bank Berhad 7,062,941
Malayan Banking Berhad* 3,146,746
RHB Investment Bank Berhad* 2,348,865
Hong Leong Bank Berhad 1,606,894
Hong Leong Investment Bank
Berhad 1,000,000
Affin Hwang Investment Bank Bhd* 772,428
Maybank Islamic Berhad 519,835
16,457,709

42.92
19.12
14.27

9.76

6.08

4.69
3.16

100.00

Details of transactions by the Fund for the financial year ended 30 June 2023 are as follows:

RHB Investment Bank Bhd* 11,286,632
Malayan Banking Bhd* 8,239,400
CIMB Bank Bhd 4,536,628
Affin Hwang Investment Bank Bhd* 1,309,842
Hong Leong Investment Bank Bhd 1,300,000
Standard Chartered Bank Malaysia
Bhd 784,809
27,457,311

41.11
30.01
16.52
4.77
4.73

2.86
100.00

Includes purchase price plus accrued interest at acquisition.
* Included in transactions with brokers and dealers are cross trades conducted between

portfolios managed by the Manager.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

MANAGER

Opus Asset Management Sdn Bhd 199601042272 (414625-T)

B-19-2, Northpoint Offices,

Mid Valley City,

No. 1, Medan Syed Putra Utara,
59200 Kuala Lumpur

Malaysia

Tel: 03-2288 8882
Fax: 03-2288 8889

TRUSTEE

Maybank Trustees Berhad 196301000109 (5004-P)
8th Floor, Menara Maybank,

100, Jalan Tun Perak,

50050 Kuala Lumpur,

Malaysia

Tel: 03-2070 8833
Fax: 03-2070 9387
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